IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

AUG 0 9 1999

ROBERT L. STURGIS, Petitioner,)	CLERK SUPPLEME COURT BY ORIGINAL
VS.)))	5 th DCA Case No. 98-1291
STATE OF FLORIDA,)	Supreme Court Case No.
Respondent.)))	96,210

PETITIONER'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

JAMES B. GIBSON PUBLIC DEFENDER SEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

M. A. LUCAS ASSISTANT PUBLIC DEFENDER FLORIDA BAR NO. 0658286 112 Orange Ave., Ste. A Daytona Beach, Fl 32114 (904) 252-3367

ATTORNEY FOR PETITIONER

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

An Information was filed on December 11, 1997, charging Appellant with burglary of an occupied structure, a second degree felony, in violation of Section 810.02(3), Florida Statutes. (R 21) The information alleged that on December 3, 1997, Appellant entered unlawfully a residence located at 136 Bethune Village, without the consent of the owner, which structure was occupied by a human being at the time. (R 21)

On March 19, 1998, defense counsel filed a 'Motion to Find the "Prison Releasee Reoffender" Statute, F. S. 775.082(8) (1997) Unconstitutional.' (R 37-38)

The case proceeded to trial on March 20, 1998, before the Honorable S.

James Foxman, Circuit Court Judge of the Seventh Judicial Circuit, in and for

Volusia County, Florida. (T 1-95) At the close of the State's case, defense counsel

moved for a judgment of acquittal. (T 50) The trial court denied the motion. (T 50) After deliberations, the jury returned a verdict of guilty as charged in the information. (T 92-93, R 44)

On April 6, 1998, the State filed a "Notice of Classifying Defendant as a Prisoner Releasee Reoffender". (R 50-60)

A sentencing hearing was held on May 7, 1998 before Judge Foxman. (R 1-18) Defense counsel objected to sentencing Appellant pursuant to the Prison Releasee Reoffender, Florida Statute, Section 775.084, arguing that it was unconstitutional. Defense counsel also argued that Appellant never received notice either actual or written regarding the Statute. (R 2-3) Appellant's sentencing guidelines scoresheet total resulted in a minimum state prison months of 60 and a maximum state prison months of 100. (R 48) The trial court stated:

"...I've been thinking about it a lot. I think, technically, from a technical standpoint, the PRR statute is constitutional. I have grave misgivings with it and I do think that it takes away the discretion of the judge completely, and I understand the Lake City judge's frustration with it. I shared such frustration when we first had sentencing guidelines.But I think the Legislature has the right to do this and I also think that their stated purpose of going after the recidivists, the people that get out of prison and still commit crimes, is a legitimate public purpose and it serves that purpose well. I do have a lot of difficulty with the actual sentence here, because I think it is a little bit of an overkill. I think that the defense attorney is right. I think,

frankly, Mr. Sturgis is more of a harm to himself and a threat to himself than he is to the rest of us, and I think that some type of habitualization with a slightly less prison sentence would serve all of us just as well. He's a walking, talking crack addict.

The Court: I can't give it to you, my hands are tied; the Legislature has seen to that. And, like I said, the sentence wouldn't be this but for that statute and I can't blame the public or the legislature for the statute. I understand why they are doing it. I'd do something a little bit different, but I'm sorry. Your adjudicated guilty. Your sentenced to fifteen years state prison under the PRR statute, which I find constitutional, day for day; credit for the time you've already served..." (R 16-17) (emphasis supplied)

On appeal to the Fifth District Court of Appeal, Petitioner argued that the trial court erred in sentencing Petitioner as a Prison Releasee Reoffender because the statute is unconstitutional. On June 25, 1999, the Fifth District issued its opinion affirming Petitioner's sentence. See Sturgis v. State, 24 Fla. L. Weekly D 1509 (Fla. 5th DCA June 25, 1999). (Appendix) In rejecting Petitioner's argument, the District Court cited to Speed v. State, 24 Fla. L. Weekly D1017 (Fla. 5th DCA April 23, 1999) which is currently pending review with this Court in case number 95,706.

A timely notice to invoke this Court's discretionary jurisdiction was filed on July 26, 1999.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

This Honorable Court has discretionary jurisdiction pursuant to Jollie v. State, 405 So. 2d 418 (Fla. 1981) to review the instant case where the Fifth District Court of Appeal cited in its opinion to a case which is currently pending review with this Court.

ARGUMENT

THIS COURT HAS JURISDICTION TO REVIEW THE INSTANT CASE PURSUANT TO <u>JOLLIE V. STATE</u>, 405 So. 2d 418 (Fla. 1981).

Petitioner appealed to the Fifth District Court of Appeal, arguing that the trial court erred in sentencing him as a Prison Releasee Reoffender because the statute is unconstitutional. The Fifth District affirmed Petitioner's sentences citing to Speed v. State, 24 Fla. L. Weekly D1017 (Fla. 5th DCA April 23, 1999) which has been accepted by this Court for review in case number 95,706. This Honorable Court has discretionary jurisdiction to accept the instant case pursuant to Jollie v. State, 405 So. 2d 418 (Fla. 1981).

CONCLUSION

Petitioner respectfully requests this Honorable Court to exercise its discretionary jurisdiction and accept the instant case for review.