DEBBIE CAUSSEAUX AUG 18 1999 CLERK, SUPREME COURT By ___

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

ROBERT L. STURGIS,

Petitioner,

RIGINAL

CASE NO. 96,210

STATE OF FLORIDA,

v.

Respondent.

ON DISCRETIONARY REVIEW FROM THE FIFTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL

JURISDICTIONAL BRIEF OF RESPONDENT

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL

BELLE B. SCHUMANN ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL FLORIDA BAR #397024

KRISTEN L. DAVENPORT ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL Fla. Bar #909130 444 Seabreeze Blvd. Fifth Floor Daytona Beach, FL 32118 (904) 238-4990

COUNSEL FOR RESPONDENT

STATEMENT OF FACTS

Sturgis' conviction and sentence were affirmed without opinion by the Fifth District Court of Appeal. <u>Sturgis v. State</u>, 733 So. 2d 1157 (Fla. 5th DCA 1999). In so holding, the district court found this case to be controlled by the recent decision of its sister court in <u>McKnight v State</u>, 727 So. 2d 314 (Fla. 3d DCA 1999), as well as its own prior opinion in <u>Speed v State</u>, 732 So. 2d 17 (Fla. 5th DCA 1999).

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

In deciding this case, the district court relied on recent opinions which have petitions for review presently pending before this Court. Should this Court grant review in those cases, the Court would also have jurisdiction to review the instant case.

As a practical matter, however, it may be more prudent to hold this petition for review in abeyance until this same issue is resolved in other pending cases.

3

ARGUMENT

THIS COURT SHOULD DECLINE TO ACCEPT JURISDICTION OF THIS CASE UNLESS IT ACCEPTS JURISDICTION IN <u>MCKNIGHT</u> OR <u>SPEED</u>.

This Court has jurisdiction under article V, section (3)(b)(3) of the Florida Constitution where a decision of a district court "expressly and directly conflicts" with a decision of this Court or another district court. Where the district court's decision is a per curiam opinion which cites as controlling law a decision that is either pending review in or has been reversed by this Court, this Court has the discretion to accept jurisdiction. <u>Jollie v.</u> State, 405 So. 2d 418, 420 (Fla. 1981).

Here, the district court found this case to be controlled by the recent decision of its sister court in <u>McKnight v. State</u>, 727 So. 2d 314 (Fla. 3d DCA 1999), as well as its own prior opinion in <u>Speed v State</u>, 732 So. 2d 17 (Fla. 5th DCA 1999).. A petition for review of <u>McKnight</u> is presently pending before this Court (case # 95,154). A petition for review of <u>Speed</u> is presently pending before this Court as well (case # 95,706). Should this Court grant review in <u>McKnight</u> or <u>Speed</u>, jurisdiction would be appropriate in this case as well.

However, if this Court declines to accept jurisdiction in <u>McKnight</u> and <u>Speed</u>, then it must decline jurisdiction here also, as the district court's limited per curiam affirmed opinion does not

4

facially conflict with any other case.. <u>See Harrison v. Hyster</u> <u>Co.</u>, 515 So. 2d 1279 (Fla. 1987).

Additionally, the State notes that this same issue -- the constitutionality of the Prison Releasee Reoffender Act -- is presently pending review in numerous other cases in this Court. See, e.g., State v. Cotton, case # 94,996. Accordingly, the State submits that the interests of judicial economy, as well as fairness to this defendant, can best be served by holding this petition for review in abeyance pending resolution of this issue in the other cases. Numerous cases involving this issue will be ripe for review by this Court in the near future, and little purpose would be served by full briefing in all of them.

5

CONCLUSION

Based on the arguments and authorities presented herein, respondent respectfully requests this honorable Court decline to accept jurisdiction of this case unless it accepts jurisdiction in <u>McKnight</u> or <u>Speed</u>.